
 
 
 
OUR MISSION IS TO PROVIDE EXCEPTIONAL PUBLIC SERVICES THAT  

                                                 ENHANCE THE EXPERIENCE OF LIVING, WORKING AND VISITING ADA. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

A Copy of the above information is available upon request M-F 8AM-5PM at the Ada Township Clerk’s Office, excluding Holidays 

If you would like to be on the Ada Township e-mail information list please inform the Clerk or e-mail the Clerk at jsmith@adatownshipmi.com.  Persons with 
special needs, as defined in the Americans with Disabilities Act, should contact the Ada Township Clerk or call the Michigan Relay Center 

TDD # 1-800-649-3777. 
 

                                       TENTATIVE AGENDA   
                                        ADA TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING                          

                                         MONDAY, AUGUST 26, 2019 at 12:00 P.M. 
                                      ADA TOWNSHIP HALL 

                                     7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE 
 

              
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 A.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 B.   MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 C.   NOTE BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT & ABSENT 

 
II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
III.          GENERAL TOWNSHIP BUSINESS  
 MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES & ACCEPT REPORTS / COMMUNICATIONS UNDER CONSENT 
 AGENDA  

A. APPROVAL OF BOARD MEETING MINUTES:  
 1.  TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES – 08/16/19 & 08/12/19 

               B.    RECEIVE AND FILE VARIOUS REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS: 
                              1.  ADA DDA MINUTES – 07/08/19 
  2.  ADA HISTORICAL SOCIETY MINUTES – 07/11/19 
  3.  KENT COUNTY SHERIFF DEPARTMENT REPORTS – 04/01/19 – 06/30/19 
  4.  ADA TOWNSHIP WATER QUALITY REPORT – 2018 
  5.  GRAND VALLEY ESTATES WATER QUALITY REPORT – 2018 
  6.  AT&T TWELFTH ANNUAL VIDEO REPORT – 08/09/19 
  7.  PLANNIN COMMISSION MINUTES – 07/18/19 
  8.  UTILITY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES– 06/20/19 
  9.  ADA LIBRARY & COMMUNITY CENTER – PROJECT STATUS REPORT – 08/14/19 
              10.  PARK DIRECTOR’S REPORT – 08/15/19 
              11.  COMCAST UPDATE – 08/16/19  
       
IV.          APPROVAL OF WARRANTS 
 A.   TOWNSHIP GENERAL WARRANTS    
 
 V. PUBLIC COMMENT   
 
VI. BOARD COMMENT  
 
VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. 2019 TAX RATE REQUEST – OPERATING, PUBLIC SAFETY, PARK & NON-MOTORIZED TRAILS, 
FORM L – 4029 

B. 2019 TAX RATE REQUEST – ADA DDA, FORM L – 4029 
C. CITIZEN’S REQUEST TO APPOINT A TASKFORCE TO EXPLORE WHAT A NEW MODEL OF 

GOVERNANCE MIGHT LOOK LIKE AND HOW TO MOVE FORWARD. 
D. CONSULTANT SERVICES FOR UPDATE OF TOWNSHIP NON-MOTORIZED TRAIL PLAN 
E. ADA TOWNSHIP SPECIAL EVENT WAIVER REQUEST – “BRATS AND BONFIRES” 
F. RESOLUTION R-082619-1, RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL LICENSE – 

“BRATS AND BONFIRES” 
 

  
IX. OPPORTUNITY FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
  
X.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

mailto:jsmith@adatownshipmi.com


Draft 
ADA TOWNSHIP SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

MINUTES 
AUGUST 16, 2019 

Meeting was called to order by Supervisor Haga at 12:08 p.m.  Members present:  Supervisor Haga, Clerk Smith, Treasurer 
Moran, Trustee Proos.  Trustee Jacobs arrived at 12:09 p.m.  Members absent:  Trustees Hurwitz and McAleenan.  Also Present:  
two community members.   

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Moved by Proos, supported by Moran, to approve the Agenda as presented.  Motion carried. 

NEW BUSINESS 

AMY VAN ANDEL LIBRARY AND COMMUNITY CENTER GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE (GMP) AMENDMENT #2 – BID 
PACKAGE 2 – CONCRETE AND STEEL 
Scott Rantala, JLL, explained that the last meeting Bid Package #1 had been approved for site work.  Bid Package 2 bids were 
opened on August 8 and are now being considered for concrete and structural steel.  Moved by Proos, supported by Jacobs, 
to approve Bid Package 2 in the amount of $980,614. and Amendment 2 to the Guaranteed Maximum Price Agreement, 
with an updated total of $1,893,224.  Roll Call:  Yes – Proos, Jacobs, Smith, Moran, Haga; No – 0; Absent – Hurwitz, 
McAleenan.  Motion carried.  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:22 p.m. 

______________________________ ______________________ 
Jacqueline Smith  Date 
Ada Township Clerk 

III.A.1



Draft 
ADA TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING 

MINUTES 
AUGUST 12, 2019 

Meeting was called to order by Supervisor Haga at noon.  Members present:  Supervisor Haga, Clerk Smith, Trustees Hurwitz, 
Jacobs, and Proos.  Members absent:  Treasurer Moran and Trustee McAleenan.  Also Present:  Parks Director Fitzpatrick, 
Planning Director Ferro, Fire Chief Murray, DDA Coordinator Hilbrands, and approximately 14 community members.   

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Moved by Hurwitz, supported by Jacobs, to approve the Agenda as presented.  Motion carried. 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION - KENT DISTRICT LIBRARY 2018 ANNUAL REPORT 

Chuck Myers, Lindsey Dorfman, and Vanessa Walstra, from KDL, gave a report on the activities of KDL and in particular the 
Cascade Branch, for 2018. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Approval of Board Meeting Minutes  
Township Board Minutes - 07/22/19 
Receive and File Various Reports/Communications 
1. Assembly Room AV Update - 08/02/19; 2. Ada Township Fire Department Update - 06/19 and 07/19; 3. Annual Planning
Commission Report - 04/18/19; 4. Planning Commission Minutes - 06/20/19; 5. Boot Communications - 07/16/19; 6. REGIS
Board Minutes - 04/24/19; 7. GVMC Board Minutes - 06/06/19; 8. Comcast Channel Lineup Change - 07/22/19.
Moved by Jacobs, supported by Hurwitz, to approve the Minutes and accept the Reports and Communications under
the Consent Agenda.  Motion carried.

APPROVAL OF WARRANTS 

ADA TOWNSHIP GENERAL WARRANTS 
Clerk Smith presented the following Hand Checks: #101, $30,034.81; #205, $3,612.72; #214, $2,775.34; #248 $2,780.00; #401 
$2,877.84; #590, $4,220.27; #591, $1,831.36; #592, $856.48. Total of all Hand Checks: $48,988.82.  Warrants: #101, 
$45,265.24; #205, $4,875.06; #211, $142.72; #214 $9,618.41; #248 $1,830.77; #401 $111,476.55; #590 $128,556.94; #591 
$180,022.70; #592 $6,443.10. Total of all Warrants: $488,231.49. Total of all Checks and Warrants: $537,220.31. Moved by 
Proos, supported by Jacobs, to approve the Warrant Report for August 12, 2019, in the total amount of $537,220.31.  
Roll Call:  Yes - Hurwitz, Proos, Jacobs, Smith, Haga; No - 0; Absent - Moran, McAleenan.  Motion carried. 

PAY APPLICATION #3/FINAL - TRAIL CONSTRUCTION AND REPAIRS 
Steve Groenenboom, Moore & Bruggink, explained the request for final payment for the trail construction.  Moved by Jacobs, 
supported by Hurwitz, to approve Pay Application 3 and Final to Jordan Intercoastal in the amount of $67,974.30.  
Moved by Proos, supported by Smith, to amend the motion to include holding back 10% ($6,797.43) for final completion 
and warranty.  Motion to amend carried.  Roll Call for Main Motion (as amended):  Yes - Proos, Jacobs, Hurwitz, Haga, 
Smith; No - 0; Absent - Moran, McAleenan.  Motion carried.   

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Carman Puglisi commented on the recent graveling on Pettis and stated with the speed, it’s difficult to see where you’re going. 
He also stated a pothole has been there for two years. 
Mark Fitzpatrick, Parks Director, stated Leonard Park opened fairly quickly after the storm damage.  The light poles have been 
replaced.  He thanked the summer intern for her service. 

III.A.1



Ada Township Board Meeting 
Minutes of August 12, 2019 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

BOARD COMMENT 
 
Trustee Proos also commented on the graveling on Pettis, including loose gravel and bicyclists.  He also commented on the 
Knapp/Pettis sign, and thanked those who put pressure on the Road Commission in regards to pedestrian safety in the village. 

Trustee Jacobs commented on repairs to Thornapple River Drive. 

Supervisor Haga referenced his memo regarding pedestrian safety in the village. 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION R-081219-1 - DESIGNATION OF SEPTEMBER 20, 2019, “PRISONER OF WAR/MISSING IN ACTION 
RECOGNITION DAY” 
Moved by Proos, supported by Smith, to adopt Resolution R-081319-1, a resolution for the designation of September 
20, 2019 as “Prisoner of War / Missing in action Recognition Day.”  Roll Call:  Yes - Jacobs, Hurwitz, Proos, Smith, 
Haga; No - 0; Absent - Moran, McAleenan.  Resolution adopted. 
 
AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT WITH JLL FOR PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE LIBRARY/COMMUNITY 
CENTER 
Planning Director Ferro explained the original contract with JLL was for 24 months.  Delays have stretched out the project.  
Moved by Jacobs, supported by Hurwitz, to amend the contract with JLL for Project Management Services for the 
Library/Community Center.  Roll Call:  Yes - Proos, Hurwitz, Jacobs, Haga, Smith; No - 0; Absent - Moran, McAleenan.  
Motion carried. 
 
AGREEMENT WITH CUSTER INC. FOR FURNITURE SELECTION AND PROCUREMENT SERVICES FOR THE 
LIBRARY/COMMUNITY CENTER 
Planning Director Ferro explained the offer for Custer Inc. to perform furniture and AV design and procurement services.  Moved 
by Hurwitz, supported by Jacobs, to approve an agreement with Custer Inc. for furniture selection and procurement 
services for the library/community center.  Roll Call:  Yes - Hurwitz, Jacobs, Proos, Smith, Haga; No - 0; Absent - Moran, 
McAleenan.  Motion carried. 
 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 8 FOR SETTLERS GROVE PROJECT 
Mike Oezer, Progressive AE, explained the reason for the change order.  Moved by Hurwitz, supported by Jacobs, to approve 
Change Order No. 8 for the Settlers Grove Project, at a net cost of $3,825.  There was some discussion among board 
members about the itemizations.  Moved by Proos, supported by Hurwitz, to amend the motion to delete the fountain.  
Motion to amend carried.  Roll Call on original motion (as amended):  Yes - Proos, Jacobs, Hurwitz, Smith, Haga; No - 
0; Absent - Moran, McAleenan.  Motion carried. 
 
Trustee Hurwitz left the room. 
 
FIREWORKS PERMIT - 2280 GRAND RIVER DRIVE 
Jeff Snyder, 2280 Grand River, explained the request to conduct a fireworks display on his property.  Moved by Proos, 
supported by Jacobs, to approve the Fireworks Permit for 2280 Grand River Drive, for August 31, 2019.  Motion carried. 
 
Trustee Hurwitz returned to the meeting. 
 
POTENTIAL TERMINATION OF TAX BASE SHARING BETWEEN ADA TOWNSHIP DDA AND KENT COUNTY 
Planning Director Ferro explained that the township had initiated agreements regarding two captures of millages, for the DDA 
and for the Brownfield Development, and that we could not legally have both agreements.  Moved by Jacobs, supported by 
Hurwitz, to approve the terms of the Termination of Tax Base Sharing Agreement between Ada Township DDA and Kent 
County.  Roll Call:  Yes - Hurwitz, Jacobs, Proos, Smith, Haga; No - 0; Absent - Moran, McAleenan.  Motion carried. 
 
APPOINTMENT TO ADA TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 
Fire Chief Murray explained the request to appoint Luke Werdon as a paid on call firefighter.  Moved by Jacobs, supported by 
Proos, to approve the appointment of Luke Werdon as a paid on call firefighter.  Motion carried. 
 
  



Ada Township Board Meeting 
Minutes of August 12, 2019 
Page 3 of 3 

FULTON/RIPPLING LIFT STATION IMPROVEMENTS 
Steve Groenenboom, Moore & Bruggink, explained bids received.  Moved by Proos, supported by Jacobs, to approve the 
bid from Kamminga & Roodvoets for the Fulton Rippling Lift Station Improvements in the amount of $564,693.25, and 
the total project cost of $675,000.  Roll Call:  Yes - Proos, Hurwitz, Jacobs, Smith, Haga; No - 0; Absent - Moran, 
McAleenan.  Motion carried. 

OPPORTUNITY FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no additional public comment. 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 1:43 p.m. 

______________________________ ______________________ 
Jacqueline Smith  Date 
Ada Township Clerk 



ADA TOWNSHIP DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES OF THE JULY 8, 2019 MEETING 
ADA TOWNSHIP HALL, 7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DR. SE 

ADA, MICHIGAN 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

The meeting was called to order at 8:00 a.m. by Chairperson, Bowersox. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Terry Bowersox, George Haga, Bryan Harrison, Devin Norman, Ted 
Wright, Walt VanderWulp, Dawn Marie Coe, Margaret Idema, Justin Knapp 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
STAFF PRESENT: Jim Ferro, Planning Director, Brian Hilbrands, DDA Coordinator, Adina 
Winczewski, Administrative Assistant, Kevin Moran, Treasurer  
PUBLIC PRESENT:  2 community members 

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

It was moved by VanderWulp, seconded by Harrison, to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2019 MEETING

It was moved by Idema, seconded by VanderWulp, to approve the minutes of the June 10, 2019 meeting 
as presented.  Motion passed unanimously. 

IV. APPROVAL OF PAYABLES

Hilbrands summarized the June invoice from Seyferth PR for professional services and out-of-pocket 
expenses related to the June Beers at the Bridge event.   

Norman asked how the Ada Historical Society fits in with the Beers at the Bridge proceeds.  Hilbrands 
stated the Historical Society is a benefactor of the event just as the Fire Department is a benefactor for the 
Brats and Bonfires events.  They get a benefactor check and all other proceeds go to the DDA. 

It was moved by Idema, seconded by Coe, to approve paying Seyferth PR in the amount of $12,840.82.  
Motion passed unanimously.    

V. DRAFT SURVEY FOR VILLAGE BUSINESSES REGARDING DDA IMPACT

In response to Board requests in previous DDA meetings, Hilbrands presented a draft DDA survey to be 
sent to local businesses.  The survey will give businesses an opportunity to learn about the responsibilities 
of the DDA and help the DDA find out how they can help businesses in downtown Ada.   

Wright asked when the last DDA survey was sent to the community.  Ferro stated general purpose 
surveys have been sent for Parks & Recreation and the Township master plan, but a survey has never 
been sent regarding the DDA. 

It was moved by Haga, seconded by Coe, to approve sending out the DDA Business Response Survey. 

III.B.1



Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the July 8, 2019 Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 

Coe suggested adding the DDA definition and activities to the survey to let people know what the DDA 
does. 

VanderWulp suggested asking the Citizen’s Group what they think should be in the survey.  Hilbrands 
stated he will email a draft survey to them first to get their feedback. 

Harrison suggested taking this survey one step further and making it a multipage “report to citizens” and 
survey combination, highlighting the activities and projects the DDA pays for or contributes to, making it 
interesting with pictures and highlights.  Board agreed and also recommended adding it the AdaView and 
Facebook page.     

Knapp suggested adding two questions to the survey for business owners.  1. Do they follow the DDA via 
Facebook or Twitter?  2. Are they interested in sponsoring an event? 

Knapp recommended getting a group photo of the DDA to use for marketing. 

Haga withdrew his motion in order to postpone sending the survey and allow time to create a report and 
survey with suggestions discussed by the Board.  

VI. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS

a. Status of Legacy Park Construction
Ferro stated the status is the same as last month.  We are still waiting for the amphitheater
structural components.  Landscaping continues to be maintained by Katerburg Verhage under
their original contract terms and will soon be turned over to the Township.

b. Amy Van Andel Library and Community Center Update
Ferro stated there are 3 bid packages for the project.  The first bid opening, for site work, closed
on July 3rd.  The lowest bidder was the closest to the budget of $500,000 and they came in at
$510,000 to $520,000.  There is a Township Special Board meeting on July 15th to award the first
bid.

c. Ada Classic Criterium Follow-Up
Ferro stated the Criterium was held on June 15th and there was an obvious absence of spectators
which could have been due to the gloomy weather.  Complaints were made to Ashley Jolman of
the ABA and were passed on to the Township.  Several businesses stated there was a lack of
communication regarding the race and road closures.  These concerns have been relayed to the
organizers who were supposed to communicate one-to-one with businesses along the bike route.
The organizers acknowledge they did not do a good job communicating.

Ferro stated the organizers have indicated that they would like to hold the event again next year.
Ferro suggested getting input from the business community first before approving the event for
next year.  The lack of spectators in addition to the road closures minimizes the benefits to the
business community.

d. Beers at the Bridge June Event Recap
Hilbrands stated attendance was a record high at 3,300 people.  Out-of-pocket expenses were
reduced as outlined in the Seyferth invoice.  Ticket sales were about the same as last year.  More
volunteers are needed for the July BATB event.



Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the July 8, 2019 Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 

 
e. DDA Financial Report, 6/30/19 

Hilbrands stated the Farmers’ Market has a net positive income to date of nearly $4,000.   
For Beers at the Bridge, revenues will be close to $20,000 after the most recent Seyferth invoice, 
as noted above, is paid.   

 
 

VII. BOARD/STAFF MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

Ferro stated he spoke to Jim Ippel and shared the DDA’s concerns about the condition of his 
building.  Ippel stated he will get the items fixed. 

 
 Idema expressed concern that ideas shared during board comments fall flat without action and  
 suggested adding a line item to future agendas for “Old Business.” 
  
 Harrison recommended also adding a line item for “Township Board Update,” to be given by 
             Haga.  Also recommended, was for a DDA liaison to attend Township Board meetings to 
             inform them what the DDA is working on.  
 

Haga stated milling work on Thornapple River Dr. from the bridge to Cascade Road starts today.  
The road will be closed to thru-traffic this week. 
 
VanderWulp stated that a dotted white line needs to be painted in between the 2 right turn lanes at 
Ada Drive turning east on Fulton.  Cars on the outside right-turn lane come close to clipping the 
cars on the inside right-turn lane. 
 
VanderWulp stated the sidewalk on the south side of Fulton Street between Vitale’s Restaurant 
and Bronson Street is extremely overgrown and needs to be mowed.  Haga stated MDOT will 
need to address that area. 
 
Board discussed the lack of safe pathways to get from the Kulross/Rix Street neighborhoods to 
downtown Ada.   
 
Board discussed the unsightly cigarette butts being thrown in the gutters and along the curbs.  
Harrison suggested looking into providing cigarette towers.  
 
VanderWulp left meeting at 9:00 am. 
 
Wright inquired about the two parcels on the north side of Headley, wondering if there is 
something in the contract which states the Township must build on each parcel within a certain 
timeframe.  Haga stated the library construction is satisfying that requirement.  Wright asked to 
see a copy of the deed restrictions for the property on the south side of Headley, acquired by Geld 
from The Community Church.  Ferro stated he will provide a copy. 
 
Knapp commented on the great attendance and energy at the 4th of July parade.  Businesses were 
participating afterwards, introducing themselves, providing lemonade, etc.   
 
Wright expressed disappointment in that there were no community activities after the parade.  
Haga stated that was because it was anticipated that the library construction would have already 
started as well as other large construction projects in the downtown area.  Haga stated that there 
are discussions for next year to have activities at Legacy Park and Leonard Field. 
 
Idema asked why Ada Township does not have a band in the parade.       

  



Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the July 8, 2019 Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT

Kristen Wildes, Ada Historical Museum, suggested contacting the Forest Hills Community Band
as a possible performer in parades.

Meeting was adjourned at 9:09 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted: 

_____________________________________ 
Devin Norman, Secretary 

rs: aw 



1 

Minutes of July 11, 2019 
Ada Historical Society 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Present:    Crosby, Czekai, DeGood, Hoover, Thompson, Veldkamp, Vierson, 
Wildes.     

Absent:     Michels, Moran, Mulligan, Sefton. 

Others Present:  M. Bolhuis - Historian, D. Bolhuis, Barbara Mieras, Township 
Supervisor George Haga.    

1).  The meeting was called to order by President Veldkamp at 1:06 pm.  

3).  The Minutes of June 13,  2019 were approved on motion by Vierson, 
supported by Czekai.  The motion carried.    

Vierson related a date change for the Collector’s Club sale in the barn.  They 
are requesting the sale be moved to the week of August 19.  They will make sure 
the chair rack is near the door for ease in setting up for Music on the Lawn.  
Haga related they will need an insurance certificate for the sale.   Veldkamp 
and Haga both related storing the barrels used at Beers at the Bridge is an 
eyesore and the Beers at the Bridge committee will have to find an alternate 
storage area after the August event.   

2).  Approval of the Agenda.   Vierson related she would like to add two items 
under Financial reports.  The agenda was approved as revised on motion by 
Crosby, supported by Hoover.  The motion carried. 

4). Committee Reports 

a. Capital Campaign Committee Report
Mieras related we had a successful campaign with $719,699 being
raised.  There are funds to be used for collections and display.  Crosby
related there were some additional things that needed to be done
which were over budget but it came out almost exactly with the
contractor coming in under budget.  Mieras related they are working
with a couple of donors who are interested in looking at the exhibit
rooms.  We have a donor thank you event scheduled for July 18 at
11:00 am.  Our speakers will be Bernie, Kristen, and Marie.  Sandy
Sefton will serve as MC.  Mieras thanked the Board members for all
their work on the project.

III.B.2



2 
 

 
 

b.  Finance Committee.  In the absence of Treasurer Moran, M. Bolhuis 
presented the financial reports.  One book was sold this month.  A 
new line item for marketing expenses has been set up.  M. Bolhuis 
related she deposited $961 after Beers at the Bridge.  They did receive 
$10 in donations.  Veldkamp related he would like to see a break 
down for the event between what we spent for supplies such as pop, 
caramel corn, etc. and what our profit is.  M. Bolhuis handed out the 
proposed budget for the new fiscal year.  Vierson related we received 
two gifts this month:  1.  Pat Sullivan has given us a credit card reader.  
2.  Collector’s Club is disbanding and have given us the balance of 
their treasury of $3,509.98 and have designated those funds to go 
toward exhibits.  Previously Collector’s Club gave us a computer and 
the Past Perfect computer program.  Vierson then related the 
marketing group had a meeting yesterday.  Chuck and Ward will be 
doing a program in September “Treasurers of the AHS” and will do a 
show about some items in our collection.  It was also suggested to do 
a program on some old homes entitled “Who Lived There?”  A short 
discussion ensued regarding what we offer people with memberships.  
Hoover discussed Tish McKee did a lot of restoration of homes in the 
village years ago.  Hoover supported by Crosby moved to approve 
the Treasurer’s Reports.  The motion carried. 

 
          

c.  Display Committee.   Wildes related the railroad exhibit is installed.  
The first payment for the “kidding around room” has been made.  She 
is  talking with Marilyn DeGood regarding a new display in the 
temporary display cabinet.       

 
d.  Collections.   Wildes asked for approval to accept the following items:  1) 

A straw hat and a stack of items, including pictures; 2)  A 1963 Forest Hills 
High School yearbook and a reunion pamphlet from Scott Weaver.    
Hoover supported by Czekai moved to accept the items.  The motion 
carried. 

 

e. Facilities Committee.  Wildes related we are continuing to have problems 
with the lights in the community room.  Haga related he is still looking at 
barn painting quotes.  Wildes related Pioneer Days is August 8 and 9 this 
year.   
 



3 
 

f.  Programs and Education.   Vierson related she is setting up a dahlia 
lecture and viewing of the gardens on August 27.  Mieras related she 
is taking a class tomorrow from the Michigan History Association.  
Wildes related it is a pay per person class.  Wildes related she is 
working with the Koetje Center at Grand Valley for the second half of 
the program in October on the Grand River.  We are telling the story 
of Ada in October.    

 

g.  Membership. 
Tri-River.  M. Bolhuis related the last meeting was June 18 in Sunfield.  
July 23 will be the annual luncheon program.  Tickets are $12 each.  
The program will be Bart and Ellen DeJong speaking about their trip in 
a 1930 Lincoln automobile from New York to San Francisco via the 
Lincoln Highway.  A September 26 bus trip is being planned.   
Museums that will be visited are:  R.E. Olds Museum in Lansing, Union 
Station Museum in Durand and the Paine, Gillam, Scott House in St. 
Johns.  Advertising for the new 2020 booklets are being sold.  The next 
meeting is August 20 in Portland.  The Freeport Museum has printed a 
second cookbook.  There are recipes in it from a lady who taught 
school here in Ada for four years and later moved to Freeport.     

    
g. Publicity Committee.  Wildes related the newsletter is out.  She is still  

looking for a volunteer(s) to do the newsletter.     
 
 5)  Old Business.   
       Review of Community Picnic.  Hoover related it was all right but it 
could have been better.  It was a good beginning.  Wildes related if we 
do this next year don’t do it the week before the 4th of July.  Veldkamp 
related a lot of families take vacations around the 4th of July.  Crosby 
related we did not get an accurate count of people.  Veldkamp related 
Beers at the Bridge had 3,305 people.      
 
6)  New Business.     
     
   
7)  Open Discussion.  None. 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

8) Adjournment.  The meeting was adjourned at 2:23 pm.    
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Marilyn Thompson, Secretary  
   



May - Jul 19

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

43400 · Direct Public Support
43410 · Ada Township Commitment

43413 · Music on the Lawn 600.00
43415 · Internet 173.80

Total 43410 · Ada Township Commitment 773.80

43420 · Beers at the Bridge 10.00

Total 43400 · Direct Public Support 783.80

46400 · Donations, Fundraisers & Events
46402 · Cash Donations

46465 · Cash Donation - Tuesday's 207.30
46466 · Cash Donations - Other 4,887.58

Total 46402 · Cash Donations 5,094.88

46404 · Events 139.18
46430 · Miscellaneous Revenue 12.97
46500 · Fundraisers

46510 · Building Addition II Fundraiser 500.00

Total 46500 · Fundraisers 500.00

Total 46400 · Donations, Fundraisers & Events 5,747.03

47200 · Program Income
47230 · Personal Membership Dues

47231 · Senior (60+) 329.72
47232 · Individual 60.00
47233 · Family 450.00
47234 · Friend 350.00
47235 · Settler 900.00

Total 47230 · Personal Membership Dues 2,089.72

47250 · Corporate Membership
47251 · Business 100.00
47252 · Benefactor

47254 · Edward Bradfield 500.00
47255 · Rix Robinson 1,000.00

Total 47252 · Benefactor 1,500.00

Total 47250 · Corporate Membership 1,600.00

Total 47200 · Program Income 3,689.72

48000 · Retail Sales
48001 · Sales - Gift Shop 112.20
48002 · Sales - The Next 50 125.00
48030 · Sales - Carmel Corn 350.00
48031 · Sales - Popcorn 453.00
48032 · Retail Sales - Snacks 11.50
48040 · Sales - Beverages 596.50

Total 48000 · Retail Sales 1,648.20

Total Income 11,868.75

Expense
60500 · Cost of Sales

60520 · Items to Sell - Caramel Corn 180.00
60521 · Items to Sell - Popcorn 220.00
60530 · Items to Sell - Beverages 249.38

Total 60500 · Cost of Sales 649.38

3:48 PM Ada Historical Society
08/07/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis May through July 2019

Page 1



May - Jul 19

60600 · Program & Event Costs
60604 · Music on the Lawn (R) 2,450.00

Total 60600 · Program & Event Costs 2,450.00

60900 · Operating Expenses
60906 · Marketing 115.75
60925 · Computer 69.89
60930 · Displays 73.86
60935 · Office Supplies 273.93
60941 · Janitorial Services 220.00
60945 · Internet 260.70
60955 · Maintenance (Outside) 284.35
60961 · Gifts 27.53
60962 · Conferences 39.00
60965 · Memberships 382.00
60966 · Independent Contractor 6,666.65
60972 · Insurance 867.00
60976 · Collections Management 39.84
60978 · Rentals 80.00
60980 · Postage 110.00
60983 · Signs 207.81
60984 · Printing 95.40
60985 · Miscellaneous 148.74
60988 · Technology and Support 71.99
60996 · Telephone 117.63
60998 · Garden Supplies 469.70

Total 60900 · Operating Expenses 10,621.77

60956 · Fundraising 171.70
60959 · Museum Expansion (Interior) 8,915.00

Total Expense 22,807.85

Net Ordinary Income -10,939.10

Net Income -10,939.10

3:48 PM Ada Historical Society
08/07/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis May through July 2019

Page 2



Jul 19

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

43400 · Direct Public Support
43410 · Ada Township Commitment

43413 · Music on the Lawn 600.00
43415 · Internet 86.90

Total 43410 · Ada Township Commitment 686.90

Total 43400 · Direct Public Support 686.90

46400 · Donations, Fundraisers & Events
46402 · Cash Donations

46465 · Cash Donation - Tuesday's 188.30
46466 · Cash Donations - Other 3,542.08

Total 46402 · Cash Donations 3,730.38

46404 · Events 29.18
46430 · Miscellaneous Revenue 4.37

Total 46400 · Donations, Fundraisers & Events 3,763.93

48000 · Retail Sales
48001 · Sales - Gift Shop 69.20
48002 · Sales - The Next 50 25.00
48030 · Sales - Carmel Corn 108.00
48031 · Sales - Popcorn 123.00
48032 · Retail Sales - Snacks 11.50
48040 · Sales - Beverages 124.50

Total 48000 · Retail Sales 461.20

Total Income 4,912.03

Expense
60500 · Cost of Sales

60520 · Items to Sell - Caramel Corn 135.00
60521 · Items to Sell - Popcorn 200.00
60530 · Items to Sell - Beverages 249.38

Total 60500 · Cost of Sales 584.38

60600 · Program & Event Costs
60604 · Music on the Lawn (R) 1,350.00

Total 60600 · Program & Event Costs 1,350.00

60900 · Operating Expenses
60906 · Marketing 18.97
60930 · Displays 73.86
60935 · Office Supplies 138.31
60941 · Janitorial Services 110.00
60945 · Internet 86.90
60962 · Conferences 39.00
60966 · Independent Contractor 3,333.31
60976 · Collections Management 29.24
60983 · Signs 53.46
60988 · Technology and Support 71.99
60996 · Telephone 39.99
60998 · Garden Supplies 469.70

Total 60900 · Operating Expenses 4,464.73

60959 · Museum Expansion (Interior) 3,600.00

Total Expense 9,999.11

Net Ordinary Income -5,087.08

Net Income -5,087.08

3:49 PM Ada Historical Society
08/07/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July 2019

Page 1



Jul 31, 19

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
10000 · Checking Account 36,496.06
11000 · Savings Account - Building 64,307.90
12000 · Petty Cash 50.00

Total Checking/Savings 100,853.96

Accounts Receivable
11001 · Accounts Receivable 11,158.88

Total Accounts Receivable 11,158.88

Total Current Assets 112,012.84

TOTAL ASSETS 112,012.84

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity

30000 · Opening Balance Equity 60,375.97
32000 · Unrestricted Net Assets 62,575.97
Net Income -10,939.10

Total Equity 112,012.84

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 112,012.84

3:53 PM Ada Historical Society
08/07/19 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2019

Page 1



































ADA TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MINUTES OF THE JULY 18, 2019 MEETING 

A meeting of the Ada Township Planning Commission was held on Thursday, July 18, 2019, 7:00 p.m. at 
the Ada Township Offices, 7330 Thornapple River Dr., Ada, MI. 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

Present: Burton, Carter, Easter, Heglund, Jacobs, Leisman 
Absent: Butterfield 
Staff Present: Ferro, Bajdek, Winczewski 
Public Present:  9 Members  

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved by Easter, supported by Carter, to approve the agenda as written.  Motion passed unanimously. 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE JUNE 20, 2019 MEETING

Moved by Burton, supported by Easter, to approve the minutes of the June 20, 2019 meeting as presented.  
Motion passed unanimously.  

V. PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Request for a Special Use Permit to allow a 5,291 sq. ft. Accessory Building, which is
1,291 sq. ft. larger than permitted by right for the subject 6.91-acre property, 3200
Pettis Ave. NE, Parcel No. 41-15-05-100-041, Ben Thomet for Christopher & Heather
Hoexum

Applicant, Chris Hoexum, presented his request.  Mr. Hoexum stated the building will house additional  
vehicles, including recreational vehicles, and provide an extra space for indoor recreation for his kids.  
His children are in sports and will also use the space for training in the winter months. 

Chairperson Leisman opened the public hearing at 7:02 p.m. 

Joan Roberts of 3330 and 3350 Pettis Avenue commented that she would like to know the exact location 
of where the barn will be placed, why can’t the barn be scaled down to a conforming size, how many 
stories will it be, what exactly will the barn be used for, and how will this affect her property value.  

Robert Roberts of 3330 and 3350 Pettis Avenue stated he is concerned that approving this will be setting 
a precedence for accessory building size.  He would also like to know how many stories it will be. 

Monica Donahue of 5800 4 Mile Road would like to know exactly what the barn will be used for.  She is 
concerned about noise generated from recreational vehicles. 

Public hearing was closed at 7:05 p.m. 

Leisman noticed that a site plan was not included in the packet.  Copies were then made and handed out 
to the Commissioners and attendees.   

Mr. Hoexum stated he has a total of 10 acres, the neighbors behind him have 10 acres, another neighbor 
has 18 acres, and the neighbor to the south of him has 100 acres. Mr. Hoexum stated the barn will store 

III.B.7



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting 
Page 2 of 5 
 
his Brush Hog, a large John Deere tractor, dirt bikes, a UTV, and his small car collection.  Also inside the 
barn will be a small activity room for his kids.  The purpose of this barn will be for personal uses only 
with no plans to host parties, weddings, etc.  Mr. Hoexum explained that he will preserve as much land as 
possible. 
 
Easter expressed concern over the dirt bike noise.  Mr. Hoexum stated the dirt bikes are already being 
used and he has not received any noise complaints from his neighbors.  The dirt bikes he has are not the 
loud, obnoxious kind but are a smaller variety.        
 
Bajdek summarized his staff memo as presented in the board packets.  The applicant’s property is located 
in the RP-1 Rural Preservation 1 zoning district and is situated approximately ¼ mile from Pettis Avenue.  
The 5,291 sq. ft. accessory building is proposed to be constructed near the northeast corner of the property 
which is currently forested.  The building has been designed with architectural features to resemble a 
‘farm barn’ and will complement the existing single-family home, as well as be compatible with the 
character of the surrounding area. 
 
Bajdek stated zoning regulations limit the total combined ground level floor area of all detached 
accessory buildings to 4,000 sq. ft. for properties with 3 or more acres in all residential and rural districts.  
Bajdek also stated that there are no detached accessory buildings currently on the property and all other 
dimensional standards will be satisfied.  Pursuant to 78.2 (a)(7) of the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning 
Commission may authorize an increase in building floor areas and heights for accessory buildings greater 
than what is permitted by right, with approval of a special use permit, if the Commission determines that 
the size, height, placement, design, and appearance of the accessory building will be compatible with the 
character of the surrounding area. 

Bajdek stated that staff is recommending approval of the Special Use Permit, based on a determination by 
the Planning Commission that the size, height, placement, design, and appearance of the accessory 
building will be compatible with the character of the surrounding area, subject to the following 
conditions: 

• Any exterior lighting on the building be of a non-glaring style, subject to approval by the 
Planning Department. 
 

• The building shall not be used as a dwelling unit. 
 

Board discussed the request and agreed it would be helpful to do a site visit before making any decisions. 

It was moved by Carter, seconded by Easter to table the request for (1) one month.  Motion passed 
unanimously.   

 
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 

1.  Informal Pre-Application Conference, 92 Multifamily Residential Units on 9.64 Acre 
Site, 7590 East Fulton St., Parcel No. 41-15-34-127-003, Orion Real Estate Solutions  
 

John Wheeler, President of Orion Real Estate Solutions, introduced the proposal.  Mr. Wheeler stated that 
there are currently two apartment complexes in Ada; The Knoll and Stonefalls of Ada.  When his 
company looked at this property of 9.5 acres, they learned that there are approximately 4.6 acres outside 
the floodplain which they can develop.  They considered townhomes and small apartment buildings but 
the only way to make this project financially feasible would be to build a single apartment building of 4- 
stories with a total of 92 units, having parking spaces underneath and additional surface parking and 
garage parking onsite.  Their current plan would be to market the apartments to the 55 and older crowd as 
well as the younger crowd who would like to live in Ada but can’t afford a home.   
 
Mr. Wheeler stated their market study is not yet complete.  They are here to get the Commissioners 
feedback before they formally present their plan.  They would like to work together with Ada to create a 
“once in a lifetime housing project for Ada”.   
 
Mr. Wheeler stated they did a similar project as this called “Rivers Edge” located off Monroe in Grand 
Rapids where the parking was underneath the 5-story building.   
 
Mr. Wheeler stated they will need a height variance as the proposed 4-story building will be about 12-15 
feet higher than what is allowed. 
 
Michael Lubbers, Architect and Director of Design at Ghafari, stated he is excited to be working on this 
project.  Mr. Lubbers stated that they recognize the plan doesn’t conform to the PVM district standards.  
However, they have implemented design elements in this apartment building which complement the 
surrounding new buildings recently completed in Ada. 
 
Leisman asked if they have, or are aware of, the Envision Ada Plan which depicts the desired residential 
plan in the proposed area.  Planning Director, Ferro, stated the Envision Ada Plan shows a hypothetical 
layout which includes a mix of attached and detached buildings, but he doesn’t feel it should be viewed as 
a prescription of what the Township wants.   
 
Ferro summarized the materials presented in the board packets.  Ferro stated that the previous owner of 
the property added floodplain fill on a portion of the property, creating a buildable site elevated close to 
the floodplain elevation of about 4.7 acres.  The proposed density of development is 9.5 units per acre for 
the entire 9.64-acre site.  When broken down to the 4.7-acre buildable portion of the site, the proposed 
density is 19.6 units per acre.   
 
Ferro stated the development would be accessed from the existing Fulton St. driveway to the Marketplace 
Square Condominium with no new driveway access to public streets. 
 
Ferro stated the property has 3 different zoning designations.  It is located in the underlying zoning 
district of the C-1 Neighborhood Commercial district which applies to the whole village.  It has 2 overlay 
designations:  Planned Unit Development (PUD) and Planned Village Mixed Use Development (PVM).  
The PVM zoning designation is optional and can be used at the option of the property owner.  The 
applicant has the choice to submit their plan under PUD or PVM. 
 
Ferro stated he reviewed how well the proposed concept meets the PUD and PVM standards.  He feels the 
site does meet the eligibility requirements in the PUD standards under subsections 1, 2, and 3; the site has 
sensitive natural features, a clustering of development on the filled portion of the site, and preservation of 
the remaining natural features of the site.  The site also has public utility services and has direct access to 
a public street.   



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 
Ferro stated the proposed concept has not been designed to conform with any of the PVM district 
standards.  In this district, an “Apartment House” lot is defined as “a lot located and designed to 
accommodate a detached building which resembles a large house but which contains multiple dwellings.” 
 
Ferro stated one way to develop the site which would be more in keeping with what is encouraged in the 
PVM district standards and in the Envision Ada plan would be to achieve close to the same density with 
multiple buildings rather than a single building.   
 
Ferro stated it is important to maximize density on the site in order to support the commercial sector 
within the Village.   
 
Ferro noted the increased cost of development if more than 1 building was constructed; extra perimeter 
walls, extra elevators, etc.  
 
Easter asked if these will be rented or owned by the occupants.  Mr. Wheeler stated these will be rentals. 
 
Chairperson Leisman opened the floor for Commissioner feedback: 
 
Jacobs stated there is a shortage of affordable housing in Grand Rapids for older adults.  In hearing what 
has been presented so far, it does not seem this would fall under affordable housing.   
 
Mr. Wheeler responded that the price point will be similar to what they charge at The Knoll in Ada.  Rent 
there is between $1.45 – $1.65 sq. ft.  Affordability is different for everybody.  They try to be fair in their 
practices and build long-term value.   
 
Easter stated she doesn’t feel this project resembles the 1820’s – 1940’s time period.  She doesn’t feel like 
this single massive building fits with the character, quality, and quaintness of the Village.     
 
Ferro asked to know the length of the building.  Applicants were not able to answer.  Ferro stated it 
appears to be in the 500 feet range.  Applicants disagreed, feeling it was shorter in length.   
 
Burton stated her initial reaction was that she didn’t like the single large building and would like to see it 
broken up.  She feels the style is more contemporary and would like to see it restyled to soften it more to 
the quaintness of the Village.  Burton asked if the garages would be seen from Fulton Street.  Mr. 
Wheeler stated there will be a good-sized buffer of trees between the garages and Fulton.  Burton stated 
she agrees that density is needed in this space.  
 
Board discussed the possibility of traffic issues coming in and out of the apartments onto Fulton. 
 
Heglund stated he is excited about the density and usage in the Village and feels the price point is good.  
Heglund stated he liked the plan when he first reviewed it but after reviewing the Envision Ada plan, he 
likes the latter more.   
 
Carter stated having 1 large building maximizes views of the river and is more efficient.  The problem is 
that it’s a monstrosity and does not meet the PVM district standards.  The applicant may not agree with 
the PVM district standards but it is something the Township put a great deal of money into.  Is there a 
way to split the building into 3 or 4 sections?  Carter stated he has concerns that there will be pushback 
from the community if this is left as 1 large building.  Carter stated he feels we still need to address 
affordable housing in Ada.   
    
Ferro asked if there will be amenities.  Mr. Wheeler stated there will be a club room and exercise room.   
Leisman stated the Township has been working a long time to get rid of the 1970’s era strip mall and gain 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the July 18, 2019 Meeting 
Page 5 of 5 
 
the feeling of a quaint village.  A large apartment building doesn’t fit with that vision.  Leisman stated he 
would be more interested in this idea if part of the building were condos so people owned them and were 
vested in them.  Leisman stated this area is not the place for affordable housing as it is in the heart of the 
village and on the water.  Leisman stated he also has concerns about this building being 4 stories.   
 
Mr. Wheeler thanked the Commissioners for their time and stated they will keep working on their plan 
and will stay in touch with the Planning staff.   
 
VIII. COMMISSION MEMBER/STAFF REPORTS 
 
Ferro stated he has not yet worked on Village density and lot sizes as discussed during June’s meeting. 
 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT – Meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 

 
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
___________________________________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith, Ada Township Clerk 























































































MEMORANDUM

Date: 8/19/19 

TO: Ada Township Board 
FROM: Jim Ferro, Planning Director 
RE: Consultant Services for Update of Township Non-Motorized Trail Plan 

During the course of working with the Non-Motorized Trail Committee to update the Township’s 
Non-Motorized Trail Plan, the Trail Committee was made aware of interest in Township trails and 
renewal of the Township trail millage by another group of Township residents. This group, the 
Preserve Ada Committee, had contacted and solicited draft written proposals from two well-known 
consulting firms who specialize in bicycle and pedestrian system planning - Nelson Nygaard, with 
offices in multiple U.S. cities, and Toole Design, from Minneapolis, MN. Supervisor Haga, trustees 
Hurwitz and Proos and I initially met with this group, and suggested a joint meeting of the Township 
Trail Committee and the Preserve Ada Committee to discuss this idea. 

The joint meeting on Thursday, August 1. At that meeting, a draft proposal from Nelson Nygaard 
was reviewed, with a proposed fee of $65,625. Also discussed were concerns raised regarding the 
Township retaining a consultant without following a Township-initiated proposal solicitation process 
to solicit  proposals from at least 3 candidates, as provided in the purchasing policy. 

Members of the Preserve Ada Committee expressed their interest in raising private donations to fund 
a large portion of the consultant fee, to justify the Township waiving the purchasing policy. 

The consensus of both groups was to recommend that the Township retain Nelson Nygaard 
Consulting Associates, Inc. to assist in updating the Township’s non-motorized plan, subject to 
requesting minor revisions to the scope of work to lower the proposed fee. 

In the subsequent two weeks, revisions to the scope of work were suggested, and a revised proposal 
was submitted by Nelson Nygaard. The revisions included adding transportation planning consultants 
from Progressive AE to the consultant team as sub-consultants, shorting the project duration to be 
complete by the end of the year, reduce the number of plan alternatives prepared by the consultant, 
substituting teleconferencing with Nelson Nygaard for some of the planned on-site meetings, and 
reduction in the proposed lump sum fee to $59,325. 

In addition, the Preserve Ada Committee has committed in the attached letter to provide $44,325 in 
donated funds (75% of the total cost), to lower the Township’s share of the project cost to $15,000. 

Recommendation: 

The proposed retention of a consultant to assist in updating the Township’s Non-Motorized Trail 
Plan will address several important planning topics beyond the initial scope of the staff-led update 
process, including on-street pedestrian and cyclist safety measures and “wayfinding” signage. It will 
also better prepare the Township for development of a trail millage renewal proposal to put before 
the voters in 2020. 

Based on the commitment for donated funds covering 75% of the project cost, waiving of the 
Township purchasing policy and approval of the proposed contract with Nelson Nygaard to assist the 
Township in updating the Non-Motorized Trail Plan is recommended, subject to the Township’s 
share of project costs not exceeding $15,000.  

VIII.D



 

MEMO  
 
TO: George Haga, Supervisor, Ada Township   

 
FROM:  Randy Damstra, Ginny Seyferth and Dan Clemo  
 
DATE:  August 19, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: Private Support for the Nelson\Nygaard Proposal for the Ada Township Non- 
  Motorized Trail Plan Update 
 

Thank you for the discussions tied to helping Ada Township stay on a well-planned effort to 

continue to expand our bike trails and to ensure they are well funded for maintenance.  A 

group of area business leaders and residents have seen the proposed Nelson Nygaard plan, and 

know of the work that is being done through the Ada Township Non-Motorized Trail Committee 

to continue good planning.   

 

Our group has pledges totaling $44,325 in support of this proposal to hire Nelson/Nygaard and 

if Ada Township agrees to also invest ($15,000 from the Township), and to manage the 

consultant relationship, our checks will be made out to Ada Township to fund the balance of 

the plan and will be paid in full on or before September 20, 2019.   

As we talk to area residents and businesses, we see this work plan as a way to enhance the 

existing network and increase the biking and walking access into and around Ada Village. We 

also see this as an opportunity to strengthen Ada’s connections for our school children to 

access the Township and County Parks and trail networks in surrounding communities, which is 

critical. All should start at the core so that coming in and out of the Ada Village remains the 

most important part of our planning, as well as the maintenance needed for all current and 

future trails. 

We would like to thank the Trails Committee for their work to date and the Ada Board Trustees 

for their vision and work to keep Ada Township vibrant and moving forward in every way. We 

will present a list of donors within a week of the August 26, 2019 Ada Township Board meeting 

so that we can work alongside the township with the contract payments at all times.  

   



 
 

621 SW MORRISON ST., SUITE 1250     PORTLAND, OR  97205     503-227-3463     FAX 503-228-2320 

www.nelsonnygaard.com 

 

 

August 16, 2019 

Ada Township 
7330 Thornapple River Drive 
Ada, MI 49301 
Via email.  
 

To the Members of the Ada Township Board, 

We are pleased to offer the following agreement (“Agreement”) for completion of certain tasks of 
the Connect Ada Plan for improving bicycle and walking connections to and through Ada 
Township. It was my pleasure to meet with some members of the Trails Committee and Township 
Officials earlier this summer, and I very much enjoyed the discovery tour. Upon our follow-up 
conversation we reframed our approach as outlined below.  

Phase 1 (complete by December 31, 2019):   

• Review and refine township concepts for connectivity  

• Develop a single vision of connectivity to help officials decide on millage amounts  

• Review proposed elements of the connectivity elements with township staff, county road 
commission staff, and citizens group 

• Engage the citizen’s group in selecting the vision/story that best moves forward into the 
millage 

• Create a document that reflects the preferred vision for marketing/millage purposes  

PROJECT TEAM 
For this project, we have assembled the following team, whose combined experience is well suited 
to the task at hand: 

Drusilla van Hengel, Principal 

Alyson Fletcher, Senior Associate 

Layne Wyse, Associate  

Chris Zull, Progressive AE  

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
The scope of work and deliverables for this project are outlined below.   

FEES AND SCHEDULE 
Our services will be billed monthly on a percent complete basis according to the included 
proposed lump sum (fixed fee) budget and schedule.  



CONNECT ADA LETTER PROPOSAL 
Ada Township 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 2 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
Please note that work items requested outside the Scope of Work outlined in this Agreement, such 
as additional meetings may require an amendment. No additional work will be performed without 
prior authorization. 

AUTHORIZATION 
If the terms and conditions of this Agreement are acceptable to you, please sign below, return a 
copy to me, and upon countersignature by an authorized signatory of Nelson\Nygaard Consulting 
Associates, Inc., this will comprise the complete and final agreement between the parties.  

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 
dvanhengel@nelsonnygaard.com or (503) 488-2231.  

  

Sincerely, 

 

Drusilla van Hengel, Project Manager 

 

This Agreement (including the Standard Terms & Conditions attached hereto and incorporated 
herein as Exhibit A, which are expressly acknowledged as being received) as stated herein is 
hereby accepted by the undersigned. This Agreement is entered into by both parties for good and 
valuable consideration and the mutual promises of both parties, the sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged. The undersigned on behalf of the Client is an authorized officer or representative 
of the Client and possesses the power and authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the 
Client. Each executed counterpart of this Agreement will be deemed to be an original copy of this 
Agreement and all counterparts together will be deemed to constitute one and the same 
Agreement. Faxed or other electronically delivered signatures may be used in lieu of original 
signatures and shall constitute effective execution and delivery of this Agreement. The 
undersigned hereby execute this Agreement and upon such execution, authorization to proceed is 
hereby granted. 

AGREED For Ada Township (Client”): 

   

Name Title Date 

AGREED For Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. (“Consultant”): 

   

Name Title Date 

 

mailto:dvanhengel@nelsonnygaard.com


CONNECT ADA LETTER PROPOSAL 
Ada Township 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 3 

Ada Township 

Connect Ada Proposal 
Submitted by  
Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates 
621 SW Morrison St., Suite 1250, Portland, OR 97205 
503-227-3463 

CONTACT: Drusilla van Hengel TITLE: Principal 
EMAIL dvanhengel@nelsonnygaard.com 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES – PHASE 1 
TASK 1 PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND COORDINATION 

Task  1.1 Project Kickoff Meeting  
The project will begin with a videoconference kickoff meeting to discuss goals, expectations, key 
issues, and communications protocols to ensure a smooth project from start to finish. Specific 
tasks to be part of this meeting include:  

 Discuss project goals, impetus, potential obstacles, logistics, and key decision makers  

 Discuss how this project aligns with, and deviates from past and ongoing processes 

 Finalize the project timeline and scope of work  

 Establish roles, communication protocol, and expectations; discuss invoice protocol 

 Identify current corridors and issues of interest; discuss available sources of data for 
existing conditions analysis; begin a discussion of network criteria and funding 
expectations  

 Identify key stakeholders to include in engagement strategy  

 Discuss the public engagement and outreach format, schedule, and key events; identify 
social media strategies and existing outlets that have worked well in the past 

Following this meeting, we will prepare a detailed project schedule, data request memo, and 
public outreach plan. 

Task  1.2 Coordination Check-Ins 
At Nelson\Nygaard, we believe in proactive project management. To assure this, we will organize 
regular check-ins with Ada Township to discuss project status, critical-path issues, next steps, and 
timelines. Action items from each meeting will document each meeting’s key decisions and 
discussion items.  

DELIVERABLE: 

 Data request with list of datasets and/or reports 

 Final Scope and Project Schedule (August 2019 through December 2019) 



CONNECT ADA LETTER PROPOSAL 
Ada Township 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 4 

TASK 2 SITUATION ANALYSIS 

Task 2.1 Situation Analysis 
In 2004, Ada Township voters approved a dedicated property tax millage (.5 mills) to financially 
support the construction, operation and maintenance of a network of non-motorized trails in the 
Township. In the three years following the millage approval, the Township constructed over 15 
miles of separated paths, with smaller additions to the network completed over the next 12 years.  

In anticipation of the 15-year millage expiring at the end of 2020, the Township has initiated a 
process to review and update the Township’s non-motorized trail plan, in advance of seeking 
voter approval in 2020 of a renewal and possible increase in the non-motorized trail millage.  

The goal of the plan update is to enhance the existing network by strengthening connections 
between neighborhoods and the Village center, providing connections to trail networks in 
surrounding communities, and enhancing cyclist and pedestrian safety.  

The plan update process is being guided by a committee of Township residents (Trail Committee), 
made up of a mix of long-serving citizen members and more recent residents having a strong 
interest in community trails. 

The Trail Committee has identified priorities: 

1. Increase non-motorized accessibility into and around Ada Village (downtown). 

2. Determine the best, safest strategies to encourage pedestrian and bike crossings of M-21 
(Fulton). 

3. Review how to best physically connect Roselle Park (owned by the Township) and Chief 
Hazy Cloud Park (being developed by Kent County) over the Grand River to allow 
residents and visitors greater access to both parks and to a regional trail network.   

4. Help the Committee prioritize three to five projects that are best funded through MDOT, 
MDNR grant funding applications, regional collaboration, as well as possible local 
philanthropy to support sections of the trails.  

5. Assist in strategically mapping out ways to increase the use and value of the current non-
motorized trail system through:  

a. Bike path staging areas (Park and Rides)  

b. Increased understanding of the cost of trail maintenance and upkeep 

c. Increased way-finding and safety protocols: 

d. Crossings (e.g. crossing M-21 at multiple locations) 

e. Walkways, lighting, striping, signage etc. 

Nelson\Nygaard has been asked to prepare a proposal to assist in helping the Committee prepare 
an updated trail plan for the community in advance of the 2020 millage renewal.   

The approach would include the following: 

 Review and refine concepts for connectivity, mobility, wayfinding and safety 

 Review proposed elements with township officials, Trails Committee and others as 
appropriate 

 Meet with and discuss support from the Kent County Road Commission to ensure 
mobility, path planning will be understood and supported. 



CONNECT ADA LETTER PROPOSAL 
Ada Township 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 5 

 Share thoughts with the township on a priority of grant funding options and any ideas on 
how philanthropy may also play a role in supporting the bigger mobility vision.  

Nelson\Nygaard will work with township staff and use existing township data and resources 
wherever possible, including its preferred partners, such as Progressive AE, Moore and Bruggink 
and/or others as appropriate.   

The township will coordinate and facilitate community meetings and or feedback opportunities to 
ensure citizen input throughout the process.  

DELIVERABLE:  

 Situation Analysis Summary Memorandum 

 

TASK 3 REVIEW AND REFINE TOWNSHIP CONNECTIVTY CONCEPTS 

Task  3.1 Conditions and Plans Inventory Mapping 
Our team will work 
with Ada township 
staff and existing data 
to provide a picture of 
Ada’s existing network 
in relation to 
important community 
assets, areas of 
anticipated growth, 
vacant land for park-
and-rides, non-
motorized network 
quality assessment 
factors, and issues by 
level of needs to be 
addressed.  We 
understand Ada 
Township has already 
done extensive work 
to identify and 
prioritize eight areas of 
focus and the costs 
associated with each. We 
will build on these efforts and use this work to inform our plan (see map documenting Ada’s 
efforts on the page to follow; on that map, identified priorities include: 4, 5, 8, 9, 11, 15, 16, 18). 

Task  3.2 Network Assessment 
We will identify infrastructure, policy, program, and design guidance gaps and/or hazards that 
hinder safe and convenient access along the system. Special consideration will be given to ways to 
enhance M-21 crossings, to create connections to and from villages, and those that create inter-
regional connections to Grand Rapids, Lake Michigan, and other surrounding towns.  

Example Bikeway Facility Map from Chico Bicycle Plan (Nelson\Nygaard, 2015) 



CONNECT ADA LETTER PROPOSAL 
Ada Township 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 6 

DELIVERABLES:  All 
deliverables described from 
this point forward will be 
drafted in a manner so that 
when compiled, they form a 
complete report (or Appendix 
where appropriate). 

 Existing Conditions 
Maps: Maps highlight 
specific criteria 
including existing 
pathways, pathway 
dimensions, pathway 
surface type and/or 
degradation, crash 
locations, entry 
points/connections, 
destinations and 
activity centers, 
landscape 
characteristics, etc.  

 Network Assessment 
and Benchmarking 
Summary: A summary 
map with 
supplemental sub area 
close ups will 
incorporate findings 
from the existing 
conditions analysis. 
Accompanying 
summary text will 
describe key issues, 
conflicts, ROW 
constraints, 
opportunities, best 
practices and peer 
comparisons.   

 

TASK 4 ENGAGEMENT 

Task 4.1 Stakeholder Engagement  
Nelson\Nygaard will host up to three meetings with Ada Township, the citizens’ group and 
County Road Commission staff, to discuss issues and opportunities, including the vetting of issues 



CONNECT ADA LETTER PROPOSAL 
Ada Township 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 7 

related to additional roadway elements to support walking and bicycling. Chris Zull will 
participate in these meetings. The purpose of the meetings will be:  

1) September: Inform review issues and opportunities of connectivity. Confirm key values 
for selecting the preferred vision 

2) October/ November: Review the vision for an updated trails plan 

3) December: discuss roadway elements to improve connectivity including challenges 
related to installation and maintenance, to inform millage value 

DELIVERABLE:  

 Meeting summaries   

TASK 5 PLAN VISION 

Task 5.1 Plan Vision Refinement 
Nelson / Nygaard will host a fun visioning workshop during an in-person visit (to occur in 
October or November). This engagement serve to help refine a plan vision that will be drafted as 
part of the foundational work before this date. 

DELIVERABLE:  

 Draft Ada Bike and Pedestrian Vision Statement  

 Final plan vision  

 

TASK 6 FINAL PLAN  

 
Example Network Recommendation Map, Newton, MA (Nelson\Nygaard, 2017) 



CONNECT ADA LETTER PROPOSAL 
Ada Township 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 8 

Task 6.1 Project Identification and Implementation Strategy Plan 
In order to support the need to incorporate projects as part of a development plan and/or capital 
project lists, Nelson\Nygaard will put forward an implementation strategy with an immediate-
term set of projects for the preferred vision that will support the vision to enhance the usability, 
safety, comfort, and profile of the Ada walking and biking systems. The implementation strategy 
plan will describe the economic and community benefits of investing in the preferred vision, and 
include a table of all recommended projects with the following information and guidance:  

 Facility type  

 Description of benefits, tradeoffs  

 Up to two photo renderings for select projects to build a vision for the project and how 
achieved  

 Phasing and implementation effort 

 Conceptual costing, developed in consultation with Progressive AE who will provide local 
unit cost estimates for installation and maintenance 

 
Example Photo Render, Rail Trail Interface with Downtown Aptos, CA, town of 6,000 (Nelson\Nygaard, 2017) 

Task 6.2 Draft and Final Plan 
Nelson\Nygaard will synthesize all maps, strategy tables, and findings produced as part of this 
process into a highly-visual, easily-readable draft plan for review by the team. Upon receipt of one 
set of internally-consistent and consolidated comments by the client team, the project team will 
update the Draft Plan to create a Final Plan.  

DELIVERABLE: 

 1 Draft Plan 

 1 Final Plan 

  



CONNECT ADA LETTER PROPOSAL 
Ada Township 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 9 

Proposed Schedule 
Date  Tasks____________________________________________________ 

August to Sept. Kickoff, background document review, engagement planning, visioning 

October  Project visit, stakeholder engagement, visioning, analysis 

November  Strategy development 

Early Dec.  Draft Report 

End of Dec.  Final Report 

 

 



CONNECT ADA LETTER PROPOSAL 
Ada Township 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 10 

BUDGET 

 

Principal 6
Senior 

Associate 1 Associate 2 Designer
Total Billing Rate $270.00 $150.00 $130.00 $110.00 Hours Cost

Task Description
1 Project Management and Coordination

1.1 Project Kickoff Meeting 2 2 4 $840 4 $840 $840
1.2 Coordination Check-Ins 10 20 30 $5,700 30 $5,700 $5,700

Task Total 12 22 0 0 34 $6,540 34 $6,540 $1,200 $750 $1,950 $8,490
2 Situation Analysis

2.1 Situation Analysis 4 12 8 24 $3,920 24 $3,920 $3,920
3 Review and Refine Township Connectivity Mapping 0 $0 $0 $0 $0

3.1 Conditions and Plans Inventory Mapping 2 6 20 28 $4,040 28 $4,040 $4,040
3.2 Network Assessment 2 6 20 28 $4,040 28 $4,040 $4,040

Task Total 8 24 48 0 80 $12,000 80 $12,000 $1,975 $4,500 $5,975 $17,975
4 Engagment

4.1 Stakeholder Engagement 8 24 16 48 $7,840 48 $7,840 $7,840
Task Total 8 24 16 0 48 $7,840 48 $7,840 $0 $2,000 $2,000 $9,840

5 Plan Vision
5.1 Plan Vision Refinement Workshop 4 20 12 28 64 $8,720 64 $8,720 $8,720

Task Total 4 20 12 28 64 $8,720 64 $8,720 $0 $1,500 $1,500 $10,220
6 Final Plan

6.1 Project Identification and Implementation Strategy Plan 6 16 6 28 $4,800 28 $4,800 $4,800
6.2 Draft and Final Plan 6 24 6 36 $6,000 36 $6,000 $6,000

Task Total 12 40 12 0 64 $10,800 64 $10,800 $0 $1,000 $1,000 $11,800
Task Total 0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000
TOTAL HOURS 44 130 88 28 290 290
TOTAL LABOR COST $11,880 $19,500 $11,440 $3,080 $45,900 $45,900 $3,175 $10,750 $13,425 $59,325
SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP $0 $0 $0
TOTAL COSTS $59,325

Total Travel 
Expenses Progressive AE

Total
Labor Costs

Total
 Costs

Total
Direct Expenses

Nelson\Nygaard Labor Costs

Total
Labor Hours

Drusilla van 
Hengel

NN Labor

Alyson Fletcher
Corinna Kimball-

Brown Jungwha Yuh



 

 

  Page 1 of 5 

 

 

BILLING RATES 
The schedule of billing rates for any additional work undertaken as part of this project is provided below:   

Drusilla van Hengel Alyson Fletcher 
Corinna Kimball-

Brown Jungwha Yuh 

Principal 6 Senior Associate 1 Associate 2 Designer 

$270.00  $150.00  $130.00  $110.00 
  



 

 

  Page 2 of 5 

 

EXHIBIT A – STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
The following general terms and conditions are incorporated by reference into the attached Agreement between 
Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. (“Consultant”) and the addressee of the Agreement (“Client”) 

 

ARTICLE 1 - EFFECTIVE DATE  

The effective date of this Agreement shall be the 
date last signed or the date on which Client has 
given Consultant authorization to proceed with the 
performance of the Services.  

ARTICLE 2 - GOVERNING LAW  

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of Michigan. 

ARTICLE 3 - SERVICES TO BE 
PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT 

Consultant shall provide the Scope of Services 
described above. 

Any changes in the Scope of Services, which may 
become necessary due to changes in the Project, 
or otherwise reasonably required by Client, shall 
be negotiated between the parties.   

Consultant agrees that a degree of care, skill, and 
diligence shall be exercised in the performance 
of the Services as is ordinarily possessed and 
exercised by members of the same profession, 
currently practicing, under similar 
circumstances. 

ARTICLE 4 - COMPENSATION 

For the proper performance of the Scope of 
Services, Client shall pay Consultant the amount 
set forth above. Client shall pay Consultant a 
retainer of 10% of the total amount set forth 
herein prior to any work being done. 

Consultant shall submit monthly invoices to 
Client detailing the percent complete amount. 
These statements will describe the services 
rendered, fees charged and expenses incurred by 
Consultant during the previous month.  The 
invoices shall include charges for all labor and 
costs in accordance with the Scope of Services.  
The monthly invoice shall be accompanied by 
monthly progress reports that indicate the status 
of the project. Client agrees to pay all reasonably 
approved invoices within thirty (30) days of 
receipt.  Client shall not be obligated to pay any 
invoices which are not in accord with the terms 
of this Agreement. 

Consultant reserves its rights to stop all work on 
this project if, at any time, an approved invoice 
remains unpaid for a period exceeding sixty (60) 

days. 

ARTICLE 5 - INDEMNIFICATION 

(a)  Indemnification for Public Liability and 
Property Damage 

Consultant shall hold harmless, defend and 
indemnify, for damages arising out of bodily 
injury, death and property damage, the Client, 
and the Client's officers and employees against 
all claims, demands, actions and suits (including 
reasonable post tender attorney's fees and costs) 
brought against any of them arising from the 
Consultant's negligent work or any of its 
subconsultant's negligent work under this 
Agreement other than professional services. 

(b) Indemnification for Professional 
Liability 

For liability arising out of professional services, 
the Consultant shall indemnify, but shall have no 
duty to defend, Client and the Client's officers 
and employees against liability for damages for 
which they may be liable to the extent such 
damages are actually caused by the negligent 
acts, errors or omissions of Consultant, or any of 
its employees or subconsultant's negligent acts 
or omissions under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 6 - INSURANCE 

In accordance with the terms of this Agreement, 
Consultant shall maintain the following 
insurance: 

(a) Commercial General Liability Insurance, 
with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and $1,000,000 general aggregate, 
$1,000,000 products/completed operations 
aggregate and include Client as an Additional 
Insured. 

(b) Automobile Insurance, with a combined 
single limit of not less than $1,000,000 each 
accident and shall include Client as an 
Additional Insured. 

(c) Workers’ Compensation Insurance in 
accordance with statutory requirements and 
Employers' Liability Insurance with limits of not 
less than $1,000,000 for each accident, 
$1,000,000 disease each employee and 
$1,000,000 disease policy limit.  

(d) Professional Liability Insurance with limits 



 

 

  Page 3 of 5 

 

of not less than $1,000,000 per claim and 
aggregate. 

Prior to performing Services under this 
Agreement if requested by Client, Consultant 
shall furnish Client with certificates of insurance 
which evidence the requirements of this Article.  
Certificates will provide Client with at least 
thirty (30) days’ advance written notice prior to 
cancellation of the above policies. 

ARTICLE 7 - INDEPENDENT 
CONTRACTOR 

Consultant undertakes performance of the 
Services as an independent contractor and shall 
be wholly responsible for the methods of 
performance. 

ARTICLE 8 - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

In performance of the Services, Consultant shall 
comply with applicable regulatory requirements 
including federal, state, and local laws, rules, 
regulations, orders, codes, criteria, and 
standards.  Consultant shall procure the permits, 
certificates, and licenses necessary to perform 
the Services.  

ARTICLE 9 - TERMINATION AND 
SUSPENSION 

This Agreement may be terminated by either 
party upon written notice in the event of 
substantial failure by the other party to perform 
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement; 
provided, however, the nonperforming party 
shall have five (5) calendar days from the receipt 
of the termination notice to cure or to submit a 
plan for cure acceptable to the other party. 

In the event of such termination, Consultant will 
be paid for the Services performed in accordance 
with this Agreement to the date of termination. 

Client may terminate or suspend performance of 
this Agreement for Client's convenience upon 
written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt of 
notice, Consultant shall terminate or suspend 
performance of the Services on a schedule 
acceptable to Client and may submit a statement 
for the Services performed in accordance with 
this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 10 – OWNERSHIP OF 
DOCUMENTS 

Title to all documents, drawings and 
specifications with respect to work performed 
under this Agreement shall vest with the Client 

when the Client has compensated Consultant in 
full, as provided herein, for the services 
described in this document.   

ARTICLE 11 - NOTICES 

Any notices required by this Agreement shall be 
made in writing to the address specified for 
Client as addressed at the start of the Agreement 
and as follows for Consultant. 

CONSULTANT: 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. 
2 Bryant Street, Suite 300 
San Francisco, CA 94105 
Attn: Managing Director   

Nothing contained in this Article shall be 
construed to restrict the transmission of routine 
communications between representatives of 
Client and Consultant. Notice address may be 
updated by either party written notification to 
the other party. 

ARTICLE 12 – PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS 
AND TRADE SECRETS 

Consultant and its employees shall not infringe 
on any United States patent, copyright, trade 
secret, or other proprietary right for any 
material, product, or part thereof used or 
furnished under this Agreement.  Consultant 
shall indemnify and hold Client harmless from 
loss on account thereof, except when such loss is 
due to a particular design, process, material, or 
product required by Client; provided, however, 
that Consultant promptly notify Client if 
Consultant has reason to believe that such 
requirement is an infringement of any rights 
stated herein. 

ARTICLE 13 - DELAY IN PERFORMANCE 

Neither Client nor Consultant shall be considered 
in default of this Agreement for delays in 
performance caused by circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the nonperforming party.   

Should such circumstances occur, the 
nonperforming party, within a reasonable time of 
being prevented from performing, shall give written 
notice to the other party, describing the 
circumstances preventing continued performance 
and the efforts being made to resume performance.  
Consultant shall be granted a reasonable extension 
of time for any delay in its performance caused by 
any such circumstances, but only to the extent 
agreed upon by Client and Consultant.  Except for 



 

 

  Page 4 of 5 

 

such time extension, Consultant will not be entitled 
to claim any damages for delays in performance of 
its Services.    

ARTICLE 14 - DISPUTES 

Any claim, dispute or other matter in question 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall, 
be subject to mediation, which shall be, except 
as otherwise provided in this article, a condition 
precedent to the institution of legal proceedings 
by either party.  If such a matter relates to or is 
the subject of a lien arising out of the 
Consultant’s services, the Consultant may 
proceed in accordance with applicable law to 
comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines 
prior to resolution of the matter by mediation or 
by litigation. 

The Client and Consultant shall endeavor to 
resolve claims, disputes and other matters in 
question between them amicably, first by senior 
leadership discussion and, if necessary, then by 
mediation which, unless the parties mutually 
agree otherwise, shall be under the auspices of a 
recognized, neutral third-party professional 
mediation service experienced in handling 
construction disputes, or other mediation 
method or service acceptable to the parties, prior 
to undertaking any other dispute resolution 
action. A request for mediation shall be made in 
writing within a reasonable time after the claim, 
dispute, or other matter in question has arisen, 
delivered to the other party to the Agreement, 
and filed with the person or entity administering 
the mediation. The request may be made 
concurrently with the filing of a complaint or 
other appropriate demand for binding dispute 
resolution but, in such event, mediation shall 
proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution 
proceedings, which shall be stayed pending 
mediation for a period of 60 days from the date 
of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by 
agreement of the parties or court order.  

The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and 
any filing fees equally.  The mediation shall be 
held in the place where the Project is located, 
unless another location is mutually agreed upon.  
Agreements reached in mediation shall be 
enforceable as settlement agreements in any 
court having jurisdiction thereof. 

If the parties do not resolve a dispute through 
mediation pursuant to this Article 14, the 
method of binding dispute resolution shall be 
litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction. 

During the pendency of any dispute, the parties 
shall continue diligently to fulfill their respective 
obligations hereunder. 

ARTICLE 15 – LIMITATION OF 
LIABILITY 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the total 
liability in the aggregate, of the Consultant and 
the Consultant’s officers, directors, employees, 
agents, to the Client and any one claiming by, 
through or under the Client, for any and all 
injuries, claims, losses, expenses, or damages 
whatsoever arising out of or in any way related 
to the Consultant’s services, the project, or this 
Agreement, from any cause or causes 
whatsoever, including but not limited to, the 
negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, 
breach of contract, misrepresentation, or breach 
of warranty of the Consultant or the Consultant’s 
officers, directors, employees, agents or 
independent professional associates, or any of 
them, shall not exceed the total compensation 
received by the Consultant under this 
Agreement. 

The Consultant and the Client mutually waive 
consequential damages for claims, disputes or 
other matters in question arising out of or 
relating to this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 16 - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITY 

Consultant affirms its policy to recruit and hire 
employees without regard to race, age, color, 
religion, sex, sexual preference/orientation, 
marital status, citizen status, national origin or 
ancestry, presence of a disability or status as a 
Veteran of the Vietnam era or any other legally 
protected status.  It is Consultant’s policy to 
treat employees equally with respect to 
compensation, advancement, promotions, 
transfers and all other terms and conditions of 
employment. 

ARTICLE 17 - WAIVER 

A waiver by either Client or Consultant of any 
breach of this Agreement shall be in writing.  
Such a waiver shall not affect the waiving party's 
rights with respect to any other or further 
breach. 

ARTICLE 18 - SEVERABILITY 

The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of 
any provision of this Agreement or the 
occurrence of any event rendering any portion or 



 

 

  Page 5 of 5 

 

provision of this Agreement void shall in no way 
affect the validity or enforceability of any other 
portion or provision of this Agreement.  Any 
void provision shall be deemed severed from this 
Agreement, and the balance of this Agreement 
shall be construed and enforced as if it did not 
contain the particular portion or provision held 
to be void.  Client and Consultant further agree 
to amend this Agreement to replace any stricken 
provision with a valid provision that comes as 
close as possible to the intent of the stricken 
provision.  The provisions of this Article shall 
not prevent this entire Agreement from being 
void should a provision which is of the essence 
of this Agreement be determined void. 

ARTICLE 19 – SUBCONTRACTING AND 
STAFFING 

Consultant shall not engage independent 
consultants, associates, or subcontractors not 
identified herein to assist in the performance of 
Consultant's Services without the prior written 
consent of Client. 

ARTICLE 20 - SUCCESSORS AND 
ASSIGNS 

Client and Consultant each binds itself and its 
successors, executors, administrators, permitted 
assigns, legal representatives, and, in the case of 
a partnership, its partners, to the other party to 
this Agreement and to the successors, executors, 
administrators, permitted assigns, legal 

representatives, and partners of such other 
party, in respect to all provisions of this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 21 - ASSIGNMENTS 

Neither Client nor Consultant shall assign any 
rights or duties under this Agreement without 
the prior written consent of the other party. 

ARTICLE 22 – ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, including all attachments and 
documents incorporated herein and made 
applicable by reference, and any written 
modification to the Agreement, shall represent 
the entire and integrated Agreement between 
the parties hereto regarding the subject matter 
of this Agreement and shall constitute the 
exclusive statement of the terms and conditions 
of the parties’ Agreement. The Agreement, and 
any written modification to the Agreement shall 
supersede any and all prior negotiations, 
representations or agreement, either written or 
oral, express or implied, that relate in any way to 
the subject matter of this Agreement or written 
modification, and the parties represent and 
agree that they are entering into this Agreement 
and any subsequent written modification in sole 
reliance upon the information set forth in the 
Agreement or written modification and the 
parties are not relying and will not rely on any 
other information. 

[END OF EXHIBIT A]
 






















	Agenda 08-26-19.pdf
	7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE

	Memo to TB-08-19-19-w attachments.pdf
	Memo to TB-08-19-19
	MEMORANDUM

	Support memo- NelsonNygaard proposal
	Nelson Nygaard proposal 8.16.19
	NN first half
	Project Team
	Scope of SERVICES
	Fees and Schedule
	Additional Services
	Authorization
	Scope of SERVICES – PhASE 1

	Ada_NelsonNygaardBudget
	BUDGET

	NN second half
	Billing Rates
	ARTICLE 1 - EFFECTIVE DATE
	The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date last signed or the date on which Client has given Consultant authorization to proceed with the performance of the Services.
	ARTICLE 2 - GOVERNING LAW
	ARTICLE 5 - INDEMNIFICATION
	ARTICLE 12 – PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND TRADE SECRETS
	ARTICLE 13 - DELAY IN PERFORMANCE
	ARTICLE 14 - DISPUTES
	ARTICLE 17 - WAIVER
	ARTICLE 18 - SEVERABILITY
	ARTICLE 19 – SUBCONTRACTING AND STAFFING
	ARTICLE 20 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
	ARTICLE 21 - ASSIGNMENTS


	Memo to TB-08-20-19.pdf
	MEMORANDUM





